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Annual Membership 

Meeting 
 

Our Annual Meeting will 

be graced by a visit from  

former First Lady Abigail 

Adams at Winton Country 

Club on Saturday, Septem-

ber 26, 2009. 
 

Our meeting will begin at 

11:30 a.m. and a bountiful 

buffet will be served at 

noon, followed by Mrs. 

Adam’s presentation. 
 

Mrs. Adams will be portrayed 

by Abigail Schumann from 

Colonial Williamsburg. 
 

Please join us for this 

event!  Remember 11:30 

a.m. at Winton Country 

Club on September 26, 

2008.  Make reservations 

by calling the Museum, 

946-9068, by Friday, Sep-

tember 5.  Cost is $12 

which includes meal, tax, 

tip and entertainment. 
 

See page 5 for suggested 

readings. 

Abigail Schumann is a producer 

with Colonial Williamsburg 

productions.  This group pro-

duces educational television 

programs on early American 

history for grades 4-8.  These 

programs are broadcast nation-

ally on PBS stations.  Last year, 

they won 

four Emmy 

Awards for 

their pro-

grams. 
 

In 2001, she 

began por-

traying Abi-

gail Adams 

in the stage 

p l a y 

“Jef ferson 

and Adams” 

by Howard Ginsberg and has 

since developed her character 

portrayal of  this fascinating 

woman. 
 

Ms. Schumann, also, is a per-

former in Colonial Williams-

burg’s 18th century play series.  

Abigail has been a historical in-

terpreter for over 25 years, por-

traying a wide variety of charac-

ters.  In 1997, she wrote a one 

woman show, “Our Common 

Passage”, in which she portrayed 

four women during the American 

Revolution. 
 

Both plays are available on DVD 

from Colonial Williamsburg. 

Also at the Annual Meeting:  Silent Auction 

including a framed Mort Kunstler print of  

The World Turned Upside Down 

and signed copies of two biographies of Abigail Adams  
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New in the Library 
 

 Sorting Some of the Wrights of Southern Virginia, by 

Robert N. Grant, 7 volumes on four CDs, with a focus on 

Francis Wright of Amherst County, 1767, his wife Mary 

(Hawkins) Wright, and his descendants; includes charts. 

Also several bound volumes of Wright family records 

from both Amherst and Nelson counties—deeds, chancery 

court, death, cemetery, probate, Birth Records, Marriage 

Records, Census Records, Patent Deeds and Land Grants, 

Deed Records, Death Records, and Probate Records, Nel-

son County, Virginia; Wright Family Personal Property 

Tax Records, Nelson County, Virginia, and Wright Fam-

ily Land Tax Records, Nelson County, Virginia. 

 Chronicles of Wilkes County, Georgia from Washing-

ton’s Newspapers 1889-1898, articles of Eliza A Bo-

wen, Rev. F.T. Simpson, S.A. Wooten, and others; 

transcribed and edited by Mary Bondurant Warren, 

Heritage Papers, Danielsville, GA, 1978. 

 War of 1812 Veteran Burials at St. John’s Episcopal 

Church Graveyard, Richmond, VA, published 2009 by 

the Society of the War of 1812 in the Commonwealth 

of Virginia; and Encounters with the British in Vir-

ginia During the War of 1812, by Myron E. Lyman, 

Sr. and William Hankins, copyright 2008-2009 by the 

Society of the War of 1812 in the Commonwealth of 

Virginia.  Set also includes a CD of Burials of 3050 

War of 1812 Veterans in Virginia. 

Kids’ Corner 
 

In June our children had the opportunity to learn more about 

Amherst County’s part in the heritage of the bateau.  Deanna 

Sweeney (at right with bateau painting by Bill England) ar-

rived in her Batteau Festival dress and answered questions 

about bateaux both old and new.  
 

Sandi Esposito came to the Museum in July to teach the chil-

dren about historic architecture.  After-

wards, they practiced building with brick 

cookies and tried on some of the 

old fashioned clothes and hats.   
 

      In August, Miss Daisy Williams, por-

trayed by Olivia Claire  Wittmann, 

visited Museum and helped children 

make an autograph book. 

 

“Antiques day at the museum” turned the stylish historical 

society Headquarters into America’s attic on July 18 as 

some 70 people and their treasures packed the halls. 
 

The items were unique: a turn-of-the-century “magic lantern 

set’’ (an early “slide projector”) with boxes of colored glass 

slides, pieces of ivory, gold and silver jewelry; a Madame 

Alexander doll; a variety of clocks…two of which were re-

paired on the spot, and fine china and silver pieces.  Particu-

larly unusual were a framed 1850’s membership certificate 

from a Philadelphia benevolent society for the widows and 

children of seafarers and two small gauge TRIX toy train sets 

made in Germany before World War II.  
 

Door prizes included a framed reroute raised print, an an-

tiques appraisal book and Queena Stovall stationery. Visitors 

also got a preview peek at a slide show being prepared from 

the turn-of-the-century black and white photographic glass 

plates of Amherst county that the museum is copying and 

preserving. 
 

Many thanks to consultants 

Jim Harding of Harding’s 

Clocks and Music Boxes; Biff 

Bowen of Bowen Jewelry 

Company; Sam DeLaura, a 

railroading expert; and Libby 

Howell, antique doll consult-

ant. Lyl Wray of Blue Moon 

Antiques chaired the event. 

Children visiting the Museum now have 

the opportunity to try out some old fash-

ioned clothes.  Many thanks to Mrs. James 

Brockman for these outfits! 

Next Program: 

Saturday, September 12  

at 2 p.m. 

A n d y  R i t t m e y e r  

wi th  d o o r  p r i ze .  



The Galts Mill Com-

plex is a rural mill vil-

lage located in south-

east Amherst County at 

the mouth of Stovall 

Creek (now Beck 

Creek) at the James 

River.  The mill and 

surrounding area were 

on land patented in the 

mid 18th century to 

George Stovall (1728-

1782). The Stovall family also operated a ferry across the James 

River beginning in 1755.  

In 1785, the Stovall family sold 340 acres along the river 

to William Galt.   Galt acquired additional lands in the area and at 

his death, he held approximately 1800 acres of Amherst County 

land along the James River. The fact that the mill and village carry 

Galt’s name reflects his influence in the area. William Galt (1753-

1825) came to Virginia from Scotland as an itinerant peddler who 

traveled up and down the James River. He became a successful 

merchant in the Commonwealth and held partnerships in many 

businesses throughout the state.  He purchased much land along the 

James River and, at his death in 1825, was recognized as one of the 

wealthiest men in Virginia. He conducted business with his 

nephew, John Allen, and his adopted sons, William Galt, Jr. and 

James. He lived in Richmond, the center of his business operations. 

He had businesses in Albemarle, Campbell and Amherst Counties 

and his land holdings included plantations in Fluvanna and Amherst 

and other areas. (John Allan was the foster father of Edgar Allan 

Poe and was the business partner of Charles Ellis who was born at 

Red Hill in Amherst.)  

Galt’s Mill operated from 1813 to 1956 and may be one of 

the oldest masonry mills in Amherst County. It was the most produc-

tive in terms of the value of goods -- $20,800 --manufactured for the 

year.  The entire village area constitutes one of the best collections of 

buildings and structures associated with a 19th to mid-20th century mill 

in Amherst County.  There were 18 documented gristmills and many 

other plantation mills known to have existed through the 19th century. 

The 1880 Agricultural Census listed 13 manufacture gristmills in Am-

herst County.  Only four 19th-century mill buildings remain: Galt’s 

Mill (1813), Amherst Mill (c. 1813), Sandidge’s Mill  (c. 1840) and 

Brightwell’s Mill (c. 1878, rebuilt c. 1942).  

The village complex is one of the remaining mill villages 

that served the James River and Kanawha Canal as well as the suc-

ceeding Richmond and Allegheny Railroad line.  In 1838, the James 

River and Kanawha Canal Company erected the aqueduct at Galts 

Mill. Galts Mill was a stop along the canal, the first downriver from 

Lynchburg. Travel and shipping on the canal encouraged growth 

around the mill. The Civil War interrupted the operations of both 

the canal and railroad that went through the central portion of the 

county (built in the 1850s). In 1878, the canal lands were purchased 

by the Richmond and Allegheny Railroad and today, the dedicated 

freight rail is owned by CSX and still operates along this line. 

 Descriptions of the area include the letter Jedediah Hotch-

kiss published from a visitor to the area in 1880 while promoting 

the mining industry in Virginia and West Virginia. The author 

wrote, “the trade from most of these mines [iron ore mines lo-

cated in the Galts Mill area] centres at Galt’s Mills, where our 

friend Mr. Turner [Samuel J. Turner] keeps a wellstocked sup-

pley store.” He added further that he thought the area would 

develop into a thriving community due to the mines. In the 

1888-1889 Chataigne’s Business Directory, Galt’s Mill is 

known to have a post office, general merchant, corn and flour-

mill, saw mill and several prominent farms. 

The Warwick family purchased the mill and village 

area from the Galt estate and sold the mill to David Staples in 

1850.  David Staples (1787-1860) was the owner of the nearby 

Stapleton mill and part of the family for whom the nearby vil-

lage of Stapleton was named. Staples may have bought Galts 

Mill, in 1850, to operate as a companion mill. Stapleton was 

the only other mill village in Amherst County from which 

goods were transported along the canal and later on the rail-

road.  Staples sold the mill and surrounding complex in 1859 to 

the partnership of Turner and Kent. Samuel J. Turner (1815-

1896) was Staples’s son-in-law and William Kent was Turner’s 

brother-in-law.  

Edgar J. Turner (1862-1943), son of Samuel, pur-

chased the partnership of Turner and Kent in 1890. He became 

sole owner of the complex and the surrounding property. He 

was the village postmaster from 1881 and he also worked as a 

miller and grocer until his death in 1943. Edgar Turner mod-

ernized and improved the area. He constructed a new miller’s 

house across from Home House, the earliest miller’s house. He 

encased the millrace in concrete, constructed a new store addi-

tion on the mill, and installed a battery-operated generator for 

back-up power when the creek level was low.  

The descendants of David Staples, and Samuel and 

Edgar Turner continue to own the mill complex and surround-

ing farmland. After Edgar’s death, mill operation was leased 

and continued until 1956. The Galts Mill complex passed from 

Edgar to his daughter Epps Turner Perrow. Today, her son, 

E.J.T. Perrow and his wife, Florence, own the village.  

This article is an abridged version of the National Reg-

ister Nomination found online from www.dhr.virginia.gov.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

  

Nomination prepared by Sandi Esposito 

A New Virginia Landmark for Amherst 

County! 
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The Amherst County Museum had the 

opportunity to benefit from the eco-

nomic stimulus program.  The pro-

gram hired Jessica Boone, a rising 

Amherst County High School senior 

and gifted photographer, to assist at 

the Museum.  The perfect project was 

waiting for 

her. 
 

Frank Cash 

was an ama-

teur photog-

rapher in the 

early twen-

tieth cen-

tury.  He 

lived in 

M o n r o e 

where his 

father owned 

and operated 

Cash’s Mill.  

The mill is 

no longer 

s t a n d i n g , 

but Frank’s 

pictures of 

A m h e r s t 

C o u n t y , 

mostly from 

1900 to 

1920, have been preserved.  Frank’s 

granddaughter, Mary Jean Cash, of 

Delaware, donated nearly 

four hundred of his glass 

plate negatives to the Mu-

seum.  Jessica and the cu-

rator devised a digital process to convert 

the glass negatives to traditional positives 

and now they are history! 
 

Frank Cash photographed all over the 

county, but he did have favorite subjects.  

One of these was the high pressure gar-

dens at Sweet Briar. 

As can be 

seen in these 

photographs, 

the gardens 

were primar-

ily vegetable.  

And there 

were fields 

and fields of 

t h e m !  

C l e a r l y , 

S w e e t 

Briar had 

no need to 

pu rchase 

vegeta -

b l e s .  

The gar-

d e n s 

w e r e 

open for 

viewing, 

and they 

w e r e 

popular.  Frank Cash not only docu-

mented the quantity, quality, and 

variety of the vegetables, but he also 

was fascinated with the “high pres-

sure” arrangement that 

produced the vegetables.  

It involved quite a setup 

of gears and gauges! 
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From the Frank Cash Photograph Collection: 

The High Pressure Gardens at the Sweet Briar Institute 

Beets 

Celery 

Peppers 

Potatoes 

Corn 

Onions 

Bees 

Peas 



Membership Category 
 
 

Regular (Individual)     $15.00_____ 

Regular (Household)    $20.00_____ 

Senior 55+ (Individual)$10.00_____ 

Senior (Household)      $15.00_____ 

Student                $5.00_____ 

Business            $100.00_____ 

Special Contributions Friend  $25 to $50 

     Donor           $50 to $100 

     Patron         $100 to $500 

     Sponsor      $500 to 1000 

     Benefactor  $1000 and up 

Categories for Donations 
Operating Fund_________________  

Annex Fund____________________  

Endowment Fund________________ 

Technology Fund________________ 

Roof Fund______________________ 

Collections Conservation__________       

Programs ______________________         

Library & Genealogy Resources____    

 

Name 

 

Mailing Address 

 

 
 

Telephone 

 

What can you give the person who already has everything? 
 

Give the gift of Amherst history! 
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The Mission of the Amherst County Museum & Historical Society is to discover, collect and preserve objects 

related to the history and genealogy of Amherst County.  The Museum & Historical Society shall exhibit, in-

terpret and offer those collections to provide educational experiences for people of all ages. 

On Saturday evening, June 

27, the Museum and AGAR 

(Amherst Glebe Arts Re-

sponse) sponsored a delight-

ful concert by classical gui-

tarist Phillippe Bertaud.  Mr. 

Bertaud enchanted the audi-

ence with both charm and 

talent by playing pieces by 

lively and sentimental.   

Suggested readings for the Annual Meeting 
 

Recommended reading for students (3rd-5th grade) is Remem-

ber the Ladies, by Jeri Chase Ferris. Carolrhoda Books, 2001.  
 

John & Abigail Adams, by Ruth Ashby, is aimed at 

higher grades, yet still suitable for advanced readers in 

younger grades. It is a slim volume in the World Almanac 

Library's presidents and first ladies series.  
 

Other recommended books: 

Dearest Friend: A life of Abigail Adams by Lynne 

Withey and My Dearest Friend: Letters of Abigail and 

John Adams, edited M.A. Hogan and C.J. Taylor F.Y.I, flowers galore 
 

Now is a great time to visit one of the prettiest gardens in 

Amherst…and it’s at our museum.  Long-time Village 

Garden Club member Sue Piepho and her committee have 

created and cared for a huge colorful display of annuals 

and perennials, which are in full and fragrant bloom now 

along the walkways. 
 

We thank you! 
 

Our Election Day Cake Event will be held (surprise!) on 

Election Day, November 3.  Donations to the Museum 

will be accepted at polling locations all over Amherst 

County.  We’ll be giving away cakes at the end of the day! 

Our next Van Tour (9 a.m. October 31, meeting at 

County administration building) will be to sites out Rt. 

60 west.  We plan on visiting Coffeytown and Mace-

donia Church, the CCC camp in Oronoco, the commu-

nity of Sandidges and possibly even the old Allen log 

cabin in the community once known as Willow.   
 

As usual, seating is limited, so reservations are re-

quired.  Transportation from Amherst is provided.  

Bring a bag lunch as we will stop along the way to eat.  

We welcome donations to defray costs.  Please make 

reservations by calling the Museum at 946-9068.    



Amherst County Museum & Historical Society 
PO Box 741 

Amherst, VA  24521 
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Happenings at the Museum 
 

Saturday, September 12 at 2 p.m.  Second Satur-

days Children’s program.  History, crafts, activities 

and refreshments. 
 

Saturday, September 26 at 11:30 a.m.  Annual 

Meeting at Winton.  Abigail Adams visits Amherst 

County.  $12.  Seating limited; call 946-9068 for 

reservations. 
 

Saturday, October 10 at 2 p.m.  Second Saturdays 

Children’s program.  History, crafts, activities and 

refreshments. 
 

Saturday, October 31 at 9 a.m. at County Admini-

stration building.  Fall Van Tour. 
 

Tuesday, November 3 at the polls.  Election Day 

Cake Event. 
 

Plan ahead to shop at Barnes and Noble on Satur-

day, December 12.  Watch for more details on how 

this can benefit the Amherst County Museum! 

Happenings Elsewhere 
 

Thursday, August 20, 2009, at 7:30 p.m. at Nelson 

County High School. Admission: Free A Remem-

brance of Hurricane Camille. For information and 

questions, email societyinfo@nelsonhistorical.com. 
 

Saturday, August 22, 2009, Sheridan`s Scouts and 

the Role They Played at Appomattox 1:45 p.m. to 2:15 

p.m. Appomattox battlefield visitor center (courthouse 

building).  Details, call 434-352-8987 ext. 31. 

 

Saturday, September 27, 2009, Lynchburg Historical 

Foundation Annual Tour and Patrons’ Party Oakwood 

Place & Lee Circle 434-528-5353 or email 

lhfi@centralva.net for ticket info. 

 

Saturday, October 10, 2009, Virginia Genealogical 

Society Fall Conference. Oh Shenandoah! Migration 

and Settlements Across the Valley. Winchester Medi-

cal Center, Conference Center, 1840 Amherst Street, 

Winchester, Virginia 
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